


The executive committee is the governing body of the school. It governs
the school’s social activiies, student body politics, and all financial business
relating to athletics, Guard and Tackle, receptions and social undertakings.
Its funds are derived from the one dollar entrance fee paid by each student at
the beginning of the term and from the proceeds of athletic meets.

: Much is expected of this committee. This term its numerous duties have
been well and faithfully performed, and not once has its efficiency been ques-
tioned.

This year’s executive committee has appropriated $200 for football
purposes, $200 for girls’ activities, $25 to the dramatic club, $135 to the
Guard and Tackle Annual, and $75 to the crew. The committee awarded
Block S’s to the members of the varsity athletic teams.

The committee has revised the constitution, which had grown obsolete.
The school had outgrown it regardless of whatever alterations could have been
made. The constitution as revised is up to date and adapted to a school of
this size, and because of the keen foresight of the committee appointed to
revise it, it will, with slight alterations at times, adequately serve for many
years. Doris Barr, Rodney Ellsworth and Everett Prindle, with the assistance
of Mr. Ellis, are responsible for the new constitution alncost in its entirety.

The 1918-1919 executive committee is composed of Chester Beane,
president; Persis Miller, vice-president; Angelo D’Amico, secretary-treasurer;
Everett Prindle, custodian; Mr. W. F. Ellis, Jr., auditor; Winifred Stout and
Chauncey Lease, senior representatives; Elmer Cady and Lester Cowley,
Junior representatives; Sherid Moran, sophomore reprsentative; and Doris
Barr, manager of the Guard and Tackle.

Vincent Dunne was president of the commitiee up to April 11 when, due
to ill health, he was forced to leave school. During the seven months that
he was in office he served very faithfully and worked hard to bring the com-
mittee up to a high standard of efficiency.

Chester Beane was elected to fill the vacancy left by Mr. Dunne. He has
proved to be a capable and businesslike president, and the committe was for-
tunate in obtaining his services.

The vice-president, Persis Miller, has been a hard and diligent worker for
the organization, and through her the girls have been well represented.

Everett Prindle has very satisfactorily performed his duties as custodian
of the student body.
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ORGANIZATIONS

Mr. Ellis, who has held the office of auditor for several years, has this
term, as always, given strict attention to the duties of his office and his services
have been invaluable to the executive committee.

Anglo D’Amico, as secretary and treasurer, has kept the records of the
business and finances of the committee.

0 The class representatives have satisfactorily performed the duties of their
office.

Doris Barr, manager of the Guard and Tackle, has attended to her duties
on the executive committee as well as those of her office of manager of the
paper, and with an ability and energy that would do credit to one of mature
years.

Attendance at the meetings has, as a rule, been very good, and upon all
matters that have been brought before it, the committee has acted wisely.

ot
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ASSOCIATED GIRL STUDENTS

The Associated Girl Students organized in the fall of 1916 to create a
more democrtaic spirit among the girls of the school, and later war work
became one of the chief activities of the organization. This year, under the
competent leadership of Alberta Eckstrom, president of the association, these
aims have been fostered. The other officers are Mary Elizabeth Hodgkins,
vice-president, and Marie Weiss, secretary-treasurer.

During the epidemic the girls who had taken home nursing at school
mu-sed under Mrs. Conzelmann, while others aided by cooking at home for

e sick.

Because of the vacation, the girls as an organization were not able to
prepare the usual Christmas boxes or to collect clothing for the poor. Gar-
ments for the Belgians were also gathered, and at various times candy and
sandwich sales were held to raise money for the Armenian relief.

The association’s activities this year consisted mostly of war work, but
social functions were not entirely neglected. New teachers and freshmen
were the guests of th girls’ society at a rception on April 25th. '

As usual, various standing committees were appointed at the beginning
of the term. The athletic committee’s purpose was to create interest in ath-
letics among the girls, and the press committee has served a very useful pur-
pose in writing for the Guard and Tackle, the girls’ assemblies, charitable,
social and other activities.

Although the association has been handicapped this term by the long flu
vacation, much has been accomplished for the welfare of the girl students,
and a remarkable amount of philanthropic work has been done.

Eighty-thres



MILITARY TRAINING

After commissions, warrants and equipment had arrived for the six cadet
companies, the board of education eliminated military training as a non-
essential subject. The training is to be resumed next September.

At the first meeting of the cadets in September, Major Williamson, com-
mandant of cadets, told the boys that all had an equal opportunity to become
officers in the cadet corps and that officers would be chosen by competitive
work on the drill field and by oral and written examinations.

The next day drill started. Last year’s veterans demonstrated a few
movements for the benefit of the new cadets, and after Major Williamson
had given some instructions in regard to tardiness, the cadets disbanded. By
the next morning the commandant had appointed temporary captains, lieu-
tenants and sergeants, and with the aid of Irving Neumiller and Jack Raggio,
both of the S. A. T. C. in Berkeley, much was accomplished in the line of
training the green cadets. From then on the cadets drilled each Monday,
Wednesday and Friday. Those who wanted offices drilled on Tuesdays and
Thursdays also.

Written examinations on the school of the company were held during the
first and second weeks of October. These examinations consisted of fifteen
questions and required from one and one-half to five hours to answer. Seniors,
juniors and those who were cadets the year before were the only ones permit-
ted to take this examination. Returns on the examination were just being
learned and drill was progressing splendidly when, on October 16th, the
schools were forced to close on account of the influenza.

The appointments made were by Adjutant J. J. Boree on Major William-
-son’s recommendation.

Major, First Battalion—John De Martini.

Major, Second Battalion—Everett Prindle.

1st Lieutenant (Battalion Adjutant First Battalion)—John Knox.

1st Lieutenant (Battalion Adjutant Second Battalion)—Byron Ghent.

1st Lieutenant (Battalion Q. M. First Battalion)—Ivan Branson.

2nd Lieutenant (Battalion Q. M. Second Battalion)—Charles Moffat.

Captain, 37th Company—Chester Beane.

Captain, 139th Company—Harry Dixon.

Captain, 135th Company—Leslie Ellis.

Captain, 136th Company—Franklin Scott.

Captain, 137th Company—Hamilton Roberts.

Captain, 138th Company—Delmer Stamper. i

First Lieut.,, 37th Company—Harry Hurry; Sec. Lieut.—R. Noack.
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First Lieut.,, 134th Company—Curtis Sowerby; Sec. Lieut.—Theodore
Eichenberger.

First Lieut., 135th Company—Ira Herbert; Sec. Lieut.—Ray Salmon.

First Lieut., 136th Company~—Alvin Tyler; Sec. Lieut.—Al Campbell.

First Lieut., 137th Company—Harod Pearson; Sec. Lieut.—H. Mallory.

First Lieut., 138th Company—Robt. Vincent; Sec. Lieut.—T. Lusignan.

Warrants were given to the following, with the permission of the princi-
pal, by Major Williamson:

Sergeant-majors—Mark Hatch, Merv G. Dunnagan.

37th Compnay—First Sergeant Vincent Dunne; Second Sergeants, Joe
Dietrich, Ray Gazzolo.

134th Company—First Sergeant, Peter Todrenc Second Sergeants, Dick
Walter, Lawrence De Martini.

135th Company—First Sergeant, Reinhard Looser; Second Sergeants,
Gerald Robbins, Howard Gavigan.

136th Company—First Sergeant, Lester Mills; Second Sergeants, Thomas
Connolly, Bardo Silva.

137th Company—First Sergeant, William Milligan; Second Sergeants,
Vaughn Horstmann, Willard Wood.

138th Company—First Sergeant, Edward Gllgert, Second Sergeants,
George Grohman, Loring McCarty.

These officers remamed in charge for nearly a week after school re-
opened, and all the companies gained in efficiency rapidly until the board of
education’s edict.

Eighty-five



: ORGANIZATIONS

THE ENGINEERS’ CLUB

The fact that over two-thirds of the boys in the high school are preparing
for some branch of engineering indicates the necessity for the organization
which will provide an outlet for the ideas, inventions and ambitions of these
wotvi!ld-be engineers. Thus the Engineers’ Club has attempted to provide this
outlet. :

The club was organized with the machine design class as a nucleus, and
it has been the object of the charter members to include as large a number of
interested students and teachers in the club roll as possible. By the time the
organization was six weeks old twelve new members had been sworn in.

The club has held its regular meetings the second and fourth Wednesdays
of each month in the new drafting room. At these meetings many interesting
topics have been discussed, some of the better ones for this year including
storage batteries, aeroplanes, gas engines, surveying and civil engineering
feats of the present age and chemical phenomena,

Among the club’s special events of the year a few will stand out in the
memory of all the engineers. Among these are the luncheon given on April
16 in the cafeteria, the May luncheon, the special electrical meeting and the
big banquet the first week in June which marked the close of the first year
of the Engineers’ Club and the good work they have endeavord to accom-
plish. More power to them is the sincere wish of the school.

The officers of the club are: Chief engineer, Robert Noack; assistant
chief engineer, Harbert Gall; consulting engineer, H. A. Campion; recording
engineer, Hamilton Roberts, and technical engineer, Ed Gilgert.

The charter members are Robert Noack, Harbert Gall, H. A. Campion,
Hamilton Roberts, Ed Gilgert, Arthur Aulwurm, Gerald Robbins, Vaughn
Horstman, Ted Snider, Adolph Peirano, William Gallagher, Duncan Lee and
Herman Bartholomew, while the new members are F. R. Love, J. C. Corbett,
J. H. Reed, Curtis Sowerby, Chester Close, J. H. Harrison, Arnold McAfee,
Francis Eshbach, Clayton Gaudin, John Jackson and Byron Ghent.
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ORGANIZATIONS

DRAMATIC CLUB

The activities of 1918-19’s dramatic club were confined to two meetings.
At the first one, Julia Tuggle was elected president, and Lucille Kitchen, sec-
retary. Miss M. U. Howell and Mrs. Bell were chosen faculty adviser and
coach, respectively. It was decided to elect other officers when more were
present and to admit new members only after applicants had shown their
ability through a try-out.

At the second meeting, immediately after the flu, the members were
told that under the ruling of the board of education, the club had been classed
as a non-essential and that in accord with this ruling, all the club’s activities
would be cancelled. However, the club didn’t entirely pass out of existence.
The funds, $25, allotted to it by the executive committee, are still in the treas-
ury and, theoretically, the members have not entxrely disbanded.

The dramatic club will undoubtedly reorganize next year with the same
purpose—to promote study and interest in the drama.

O

COLOMBO OUTLAWS

Last year’s Tipo Outlaws have long ceased to be, but this year the
Colombo Outlaws have upheld the principles for which their predecessors of
last year stood. The Colombo Outlaw club was organized February 12, with
“Big” Kroh as its president, Baron Beane as secretary-treasurer, Alexander
Davies poses as faculty representative, while Merv Dunnagan serves publicity.
Other members are Fat Arbios, Lanky Bill Parker, Frenchy Violette, and Irish
McGillvray. The purpose of the club has been to combine basketball and
prize-fighting into one game and to promote increased food consumption
through numerous banquets.

At the opening of the basketball season the varsity defeated the Colombo
Outlaws by a margin of a few points. However, it is not the purpose of the
Colombo club to come out on the big end of a score, but to promote rough
work and revelry. In this game the club accomplished its purpose. Four of
the varsity men and two Outlaws were knocked out for a minute each, most
of the varsity limped to school the next day, and Mr. Cave was forced to buy
a new supply of bandages and iodine.
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In 1914 the student control consisted of one member from each class
elected by common vote, but in 1915 this arrangement was changed and
now both the boys’ and girls’ student controls consist of five members. One
-member of the boys’ student control, the president of the student body, is
elected, and he appoints four senior boys as the other members. One member
of the girls’ student control, the student body vice president, is elected, and
she appoints four senior -girls as the remaining members of the girls’ student
control. The president and vice president act as chairmen of their individual
committees, and the meetings are held separately.

Those appointed to serve this year on the boys’ student control by former
President Dunne were Chester Close, John Boggs, Rodney Ellsworth and
Everett Prindle. Chester Beane, who succeeded Dunne as president, retained
the same members on the committee. Persis Miller appointed the following
girls to serve on the girls’ committee: Gertrude Melville, Vivian Wriston,
La Verne Williams and Grace Lund. —

The purpose of the student control is to allow the students themselves
to maintain order in and around the school buildings and to pass sentence
on disorderly students. The members can not be compared to policemen
with clubs or detectives with spy-glasses stalking around looking for trouble.
They are merely students who have been appointed to help maintain order
and to stop such things as running in the halls, talking in assemblies, and
cutting classes and assemblies.

The field of activity of both the boys’ and girls’ committees is in and
around the school and at school functions. When a misconduct on the part
of a student is detected he is summoned to the student control room during
the adviser period for trial. He is told the charge against him and asked if
he is guilty or not guilty. He is allowed to bring witnesses to appear for
him and is given in every way a square deal. His sentence, if any, is decided
by the four appointed members who act as a jury.

During this year the boys’ student control has handled nearly seventy-
five cases, consisting of everything from throwing spitballs to holding fist-
fights, and the sentences have ranged from one morning suspended sentence
to twenty mornings in detention. No one was directly suspended by the
committee. As might be expected, the girls have not committed as many
crimes as the boys and the girls’ student control has handled only twenty-five
cases this term. The sentences imposed have becn generally lighter than
those imposed by the boys’ committee and they have ranged from one morn-
ing suspended sentence to ten mornings in detention.

Both committees of this year’s student control have been very successful
in their aims and the students have regarded their attitude as fair and just.
Because of this they have been able to work in harmony with the student
body, whose support has never been lacking.
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BIG “S” SOCIETY

The Big “S” society was founded in 1912 by Carl Ortman and Stanley
Arndt for the purpose of promoting a high standard of athletics in Stockton
high and for the purpose of keeping the reputation of the school and its
athletes above reproach. So successful has it been in these aims that it is
now one of the permanent organizations of the school and Stockton high
school and her athletes have become noted for their clean playing. To win
a Big “S”’ a student must have participated in a championship game or be a
member of a championship team, and upon winning an *“S’”’ he becomes an
active member of this society.

In former years, ’14, ’15 and ’16, the society sponsored the Big “S’’
vaudevilles. The proceeds from these shows have been used for the benefit
of the school. The proceeds of the 1915 vaudeville were used to improve
the turf field, and the 1916 vaudeville helped greatly in makmg the Honolulu
trip a realxty

The 1916 vaudeville was the last staged by the society. On March 17,
1917, the society gave a dance, long to be remembered, in the gymnasium.
The 1918 Big “S” social activities were confined to a school party given in
the gymnasium in November.

This year, on account of the havoc played by influenza, the activities
of the Big “S,” both athletic and social, have been placed in the background.
However, members of the society, both those of former years and those of
this year, who were out of school, proved to be “all these” when the real test
of their mettle came, for nearly all, if not every one, entered the service of
their country.

Those in school this year who are entitled to wear the Big “S” are
Winifred Stout, president of the society; Ralph Wilson, vice president; Gene
Palmer, secretary-treasurer; Leonard Santini, custodian; Vincent Dunne,
Lester Cowley, Wilmarth Hildreth, Chauncey Lease, William Parker, Jewett
Dustin, Lloyd Kroh, Harrold Mallory, Stanley Metzger, Albert Monaco, Robert
McNamara, and Lawrence Siefert.

Nigety-one



CIRCLE “S” SOCIETY

Two years ago at the suggestion of Amos Elliot, then physical director,
the Circle “S” gociety was formed. Before this was organized, when students
on a successful varsity team were presented with a Block “S’”, the hard
workers on the second team, who provided the competltlon necessary to
perfect the first team, went unrecogmzed The Circle “S” society was organ-
ized to remedy this injustice and to furnish an incentive for those who,
although they feel they can not make a first team, are willing to work on a
second team.

Students are eligible to become members of this society who have won
a position on a team which has not taken part in the Pacific Athletic Asso-
ciation semi-finals. In addition those who have been unsuccessful in winning
a position on a varsity team but who have trained regularly on a second team,
and those who have played regularly on a weight team which has competed
in the final games for a championship may be awarded the emblem. Usually
Circle “S’s” and then Block “S’s”’ are won, so that a Circle “S” member is
eligible to’ win a Block “S”’, but a Block “S’’ member may not receive a
Circle “S”.

Irving Neumiller and Winifred Stout were president and secretary of the
Circle “S” in its first year, 1916... In that year the society was formally
introduced at a rally in which elghteen boys were given Circle “S’s”... Joe
Arbios and Ralph Wilson were president and secretary of the society durlng
its second year, 1917-1918. Eighteen new members, the identical number
of the year before, were admitted.

The men of the second basketball team this year, who worked very hard
to give the first team the competition necessary to perfect it, were awarded
Circle “S’s”. They are Walter McGillvray, Joe Arbios, Arthur Bass, Theo-
dore Tamba, Cecil Violette and James Cavanaugh. In the crew and track
meets of the latter part of the term it was expected that many more would
win Cu'cle “S’s”, and after these events officers for the next year would be

elected.

Ninety-twe




THE BAND

For the past few years the school has lacked the material necessary to
make a good band, but this year, with the coming of a number of musical
freshmen and with the assistance of some of the veterans of last year’s band,
Mr. Frazee has succeeded in producing one of the best high school bands in
the state. The success of this band is due largely to the faithfulness the mem-
bers have shown in practicing and in being prompt at practice. John Jackson,
student leader, has also contributed much to the success of the band by the
wonderful ability he has shown at leading on the mornings Mr. Frazee was
busy with the girls’ glee club.

In February the organization elected officers. John Jackson was unani-
mously chosen president, Robert Patterson was elected secretary-treasurer,
and Ernest Cerneu was chosen librarian. Bart Lauffer was appointed publicity

Shortly after the flu vacation, the band made its first appearances by
holding music hours Thursday mornings. Its first appearance before the
entire student body was at the basketball rally on the Friday Stockton played
Sacramento. It appeared at nearly all the other rallies of the year and put
a spirit into them that marked them as the most enthusiastic gatherings held
in years. A great deal of credit is due the band for this and for bringing many
out to the games.

This year’s greater band was composed of the following:

Clarinets— Ralph Wentz Elbert Bidwell
Delmar Stamper James Barsi Leon Ravetta
Luther Bice Emest Cerneu Claude Zent
Wilbur Kelling Francis Smith Baritones—
John Gersbacher Charles Gill Barton Lauffer
Richmond Copp Mellophones— George Ellis
Edward Wagner Frederick Boehne Robert Noack
Phillip Baxter Chris Triolo TR
Betram Clausen Earl Zeller Palm.

Saxaphones— John Knox ‘(’;ve“? e .
Lloyd Cannon Slide Trombone— illiam Harrington
Hubert Minahen John Jackson Drums—

Cornets— Robert Patterson Charles Buckley
Loring McCarty Sidney Phillips Walter McGillvray

THE ORCHESTRA

When school opened in September, five boys registered for orchestra,
but as the services of a musical instructor had not at that time been obtained,
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they made little progress. Later, Mr. Frazee was engaged and he set to work
to get an orchestra started. He had recruited about ten musicians when the
influenza stopped school. After the influenza Mr. Frazee and the first mem-
bers enthusiastically set out to have a bigger and better orchestra than Stock-
ton high had ever before boasted.

Mr. A. C. Blossom was employed to give outside instruction to members
and beginners, and Mr. Frazee conducted stringed orchestra practice classes
twice a weel, which brought up the playing considerably. By the middle of
April the orchestra had attained a high degree of efficiency and included
twenty-five members, a record unequalled by the orchestras of former years.

The personnel of nineteen-nineteen’s orchestra is as follows:

Mr. Holland Frazee, Director
Officers
Agnes Henry, Vice Pres.
Edward Wagner, Librarian.
Members

Robert Patterson, Pres.
Loring McCarty, Sect.

First Violins

Myrtle Sellars

Luther Rice

Reinhard Looser Charles Buckley Wilbur Kelling
Hazel Tesch John Baurke Cornet
gori;‘ B;rr Viola Francis Smith
ertha Bentson Celia Woods Saxophone
Dudley Allan Georgia Dawson Lloyd Cannon
Agnes Henry 3
Edna Hughes ’Cello Trombones
David Garden L. McCarty Robert Groves
Juliet Meltzer Bass Viol . Robert Patterson
Second Violins Clarinets Drums
Lelia Taggart Delmer Stamper Ferris Farrington
Neil Moore Ed. Wagner Piano
Maurice Blain Richmond Copp Anna Workman

O

BOYS’ GLEE CLUB

In the early part of February of this year, immediately after the so often
mentioned vacation, the boys’ glee club of 1919 was formed. It made won-
derful progress in the first weeks of its existence and was advanced enough
to make a very creditable appearance at the Roosevelt Memorial exercises
held in the gymnasium on the twenty-first of February. “March On, Ameri-
cans” and “Lest We Forget” were very beautifully sung by the club upon
this occasion.

The second appearance of the glee club before the student body was in
April at the basketball rally, in which Lodi, in her coffin, was displayed to
the school. The dirge the club sang at this event was very appropriate and
well done, except that some of the singers showed much difficulty in maintain-
ing a sober countenance.

Out of the boys’ glee club Mr. Frazee chose a quartet consisting of
Howard Moore, first tenor; Dudley Allen, second tenor; Delmer Stamper,
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first bass, and Harold Pearson, second bass. This quartet received many
requests to sing at different functions after singing at several churches on
Easter Sunday.

Many of the best voices in the glee club have been recruited from the
boys’ choruses conducted by Miss Jones and Mr. Frazee.

Officers of this year’s club were Harold Pearson and Edward Gerrish,
who were unanimously chosen president and vice president; Delmer Stamper,
secretary-treasurer; Carlton Black, publicity manager; and Winifred Stout,
custodian.

Other members were: Dudley Allen, Lawrence Ashley, James Barsi,
Elmer Cady, Dwight Clapp, Bertram Clausen, Harry Dixon, Howard Eldridge,
Francis Eshbach, Alfred Fisher, Scott Ford, Howard Gavigan, Ed Gilgert,
Everett Gilmore, Charles Gill, Robert Hammond, John Knox, Emerson
Mikesell, Fred Nicholas, Robert Patterson, Wallace Rohrbacher, Ray Salmon,
Lawrence Siefert, Francis Smith, Delmer Stamper, Winnifred Stout, Peter
Todresic, Alvin Tyler, Ed Wagner, Ralph Wentz, Luther Rice, Vaughn Horst-
mann, Vernon Williams, and Martel Wilson.

O
L

GIRLS’ GLEE CLUB

A girls’ glee club, something for a long time needed and sorely wanted,
has become a reality in Stockton high this year. The girls of the student body
who had had some experience in singing were asked to meet for the purpose
of forming a glee club. Many attended the meeting, which was held in the
assembly hall in February, and soon a long list of girls had signed up for mem-
bership in the club. An election for officers was held and Genevieve McQuigg
was unanimously chosen for president. Alberta Eckstrom was made vice-
president, Wilma Merriman secretary-treasurer, Berniece Gianelli publicity
manager, and Virginia Thompson librarian.

At first the club met every Tuesday and Thursday morning at 8:15 for
practice in the cafeteria, but toward the end of the term it has met three
mornings of the week. Throughout the year Dorothy Stowe has very effi-
ciently acted as pianist.

The girls of the glee club have sung mostly three-part songs, they have
sung them well, and Mr. Frazee is very much pleased with the high musical
standard they have set. The songs most popular with the girls this year are
“Gypsy Love Song”’, “Sweet Genevieve”, ‘“Cavalry Song” and “In Spain”.

Several times during the term both the glee clubs have combined in the
assmbly hall at 1 o’clock for a big sing. At an assmbly of the student body on
May 2d the glee club delighted the student body and faculty with its singing,
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especially the “Gypsy Love Song’. The girls participated in several other
demonstrations before the school and in the concert by the band, choruses
and glee clubs it took a prominent part.

This term was too short to permit of a cantata, but next term Mr. Frazee
plans to divert much of the progress made this year into an opera.

The members of the glee club are Henrietta Ashley, Ethel Armistead,
Kathryn Burns, Ruth Burgess, Alice Braghetta, Marcella Brownfield, Alicia
Benjamin, Florence Bennett, Nova Beecher, Juanita Cozad, Rose Cormeny,
Alberta Eckstrom, Lorraine Gattorna, Frances Ann Gummer, Helen Gilmore,
Erliene Graebe, Berniece Gianelli, Wilma Hubbard, Carolyn Harwick, Mary
Hodgkins, Moana Kuhn, Grace Lund, Dorothy Lang, Bertha Leipelt, Gene-
vieve McQuigg, Evelyn Masters, Adelyn Marino, Vera Mowry, Juliet Meltzer,
Wilma Merriman, Mildred Norcross, Helen Orton, Dorothy Rowan, Berniece
Scott, Dorothy Stowe, Sallie Smith, Edna Todman, Virginia Thompson, Clomo
Taylor, Gladys Turner, Josephine Vasquez, Berniece Wiley, Elizabeth Young.

p—

THE CHORUSES

The school’s musical department now includes two glee clubs, three
choruses, a large band and a large orchestra, and classes in harmony, history
of music, instrumental instruction and sight reading.

The choruses have occupied prominent places in the musical department
this year. There is a chorus of girls and boys, a chorus of girls only and one
of boys only. The girls’ chorus is divided into three sections that practice
twice a week and the boys’ chorus into two sections that practice each day.
The mixed chorus has also practiced each day. There are fifty in it, thirty-five
in the boys’ chorus and 130 in the girls’. The members of the boys’ and
mixed choruses are given one credit a term for their efforts and the girls one-
half credit.

Of these the mixed chorus is the most advanced. The main object of it
has been to create a taste for good music, and it has been highly successful
in this. Now the chorus as a whole can read very well and has learned to
“pianissimo”’, “‘crescendo’” and “fortissimo’” very well, much to the pleasure
of Mr, Frazee. :

The other choruses, the boys’ and girls’, were organized to serve about
the same purpose as the mixed. The girls’ chorus, under Miss Mildred Jones,
has met for two periods each week in the “music room,” the cafeteria. It
has served as a training school where not only the taste for better and finer
music has been cultivated, but also as a place where latent talnt is discovered.

The boys’ chorus has practiced in the assembly hall each day under Mr.
Frazee. The improvement in ability of the individuals of this chorus to sing
has equalled that of the other choruses, although it is generally more difficult
to teach boys to sing than girls. As with the other choruses, popular music
has been permitted but little and a taste for good music has been established.
This chorus and the others have helped greatly in recruiting and producing
good voices for the two glee clubs.
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